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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON
TACOMA DIVISION
ALLFLEX USA, INC. and DESTRON
FEARING CORPORATION,
Plaintiffs, Case No.
v. COMPLAINT FOR PATENT
INFRINGEMENT

RFID SOLUTIONS S.L. and WEST FORK
ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.,

Defendants. : DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiffs, ALLFLEX USA, INC. (“Allflex”) and DESTRON FEARING
CORPORATION (“Destron Fearing™) bring this action against RFID SOLUTIONS S.L. (“RFID
Solutions™) and WEST FORK ENVIRONMENTAL, INC. (“West Fork™), and fqr their causes of
action allege:

PARTIES

1. Plaintiff Allflex USA, Inc. is a corporation organized and existing under the laws
of the State of Texas, having a principal place of business at 2805 E 14™ Street, Dallas, TX
75203.

2. Plaintiff Destron Fearing Corporation is a corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Delaware, having a principal place of business at 490 Villaume

Ave., South St. Paul, MN 55075. Plaintiff Destron Fearing Corporation is a wholly owned
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subsidiary of Plaintiff Allflex USA, Inc.

3. Defendant RFID Solutions S.L. is a limited liability company organized and
existing under the laws of Spain, having a principal place of business at Parque Tecnoldgico de
Andalucia, C/ Severo Ochoa No. 33-35, Campanillas, Malaga, Spain 29590.

4, On information and belief, RFID Solutions S.L. regularly conducts business in the
State of Washington, throughout the United States, and within this judicial district, including
selling or contracting for the sale of infringing products. | ’

5. Defendant West Fork Environmental, Inc. is a corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Washington, having a principal place of business located at 530-B
Ronlee Ln NW, Olympia, WA 98502.

6. On information and belief, West Fork Environmental regularly conducts business
in the State of Washington, throughout the United States, and within this judicial district,
including selling or contracting for the sale of infringing products.

JURISDICTION

7. This is an action for patent infringement in violation of the patent laws of the
United States, 35 U.S.C. '§ 1, et seq. This Court has jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and
1338(a).

8. Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b) and (c¢) and 1400(b) in that
Defendants have made, used, offered for sale, sold and/or imported infringing products in this
judicial district, and have offered and sold infringing products to others for resale within this
judicial district.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

9. Destron Fearing is the assignee of U.S. Pat. No. 6,400,338 entitled “Passive
Integrated Transponder Tag with Unitary Antenna Core” (a true and correct copy of which is
attached as Exhibit A (“the ‘338 patent”).

10.  Allflex wholly owns Destron Fearing, and thereby holds all rights under the ‘338
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patent, including the right to sue for past and present infringement.

11.  Allflex became aware that RFID Solutions and West Fork were making, using,
offering for sale, selling and/or importing passive integrated transponder tags that infringe the
‘338 patent.

12.  Allflex previously communicated with Defendants regarding the 338 patent and
requested that they cease their infringement. Neither RFID Solutions nor West Fork agreed to
cease its infringement.

TORTIOUS ACTIVITIES OF DEFENDANTS

13.  Defendant RFID Solutions has in the past, and continues to presently make, use,
offer for sale, sell, and/or import products that infringe one or more claims of the ‘338 patent.

14. The infringing products include without limitation products identified as
“Injectable glass transponders (9mm & 12mm)” on RFID Solutions’s website, located at

http://rfidsolutionssl.com/.

15.  On information and belief, RFID Solutions also refers to the “Injectable glass
transponders (9mm & 12mm)” as PT300 and PT400 tags.

16.  On information and belief, RFID Solutions imports the “Injectable glass
transponders (9mm & 12mm)” into the United States.

17. On information and belief, RFID Solutions offers for sale, and sells the
“Injectable glass transponders (9mm & 12mm)” within the United States, including within this
judicial district.

18.  On information and belief, RFID Solutions also sells the “Injectable glass
transponders (9mm & 12mm)” to defendant West Fork Environmental for the purposes of resale
and distribution within the United States, and within this judicial district.

19. On information and belief, RFID Solutions is and has been aware of the ‘338
patent, and has actively induced West Fork, to infringe the patent, by selling infringing products

to West Fork knowing that West Fork’s sales of the products constitutes infringement.
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20.  Defendant RFID Solutions’s actions infringing the ‘338 patent have been and are
without the consent or authorization of Plaintiff Allflex.

21.  Defendant West Fork has in the past, and continues to presently, make, use, offer
for sale, sell, and/or import products that infringe one or more claims of the ‘338 patent,
including without limitation the PT 300 and PT 400 tags.

22.  West Fork is offering for sale and selling the infringing products within the
United States, and within this judicial district.

23. On its website located at http://www.westforkenv.com/, Defendant West Fork

states that, “West Fork Environmental, Inc. and RFID Solutions S.L. of Malaga, Spain are
pleased to announce the signing of an exclusive distribution agreement for sales of PIT tags and
other RFID products to the North American fish and wildlife market.”

24. On its website located at http://www.westforkenv.com/rfid-products, Defendant

West Fork referred to the PT300 and PT400 tags as “new from RFID Solutions.”

25.  On information and belief, West Fork also sells to others, for the purposes of
resale, passive integrated transponder tags which infringe one or more claims of the ‘338 patent.

26. On information and belief, West Fork is and has been aware of the ‘338 patent,
and has actively induced others to infringe the patent, by offering for sale, and selling for the
purposes of resale, infringing devices, knowing that resale of the infringing devices by others
constitutes infringement.

27.  Defendant West Fork’s actions infringing the ‘338 patent have been and are
without the consent or authorization of Plaintiff Allflex.

28.  Defendants RFID Solutions and West Fork have engaged in a series of
transactions or occurrences relating to the making, using, offering for sale, selling and/or
importing into the United States of the same infringing products, including those referred to as
the PT300 and PT400 tags.

29.  Because both defendants are offering for sale, selling and importing the same
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infringing products, questions of fact common to each of the Defendants will arise in this action,
and thus joinder of both Defendants in this lawsuit is proper pursuant to 35 U.S.C. §299.
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
PATENT INFRINGEMENT IN VIOLATION OF 35 U.S.C. §271

30.  Plaintiffs refer to and incorporate in this Cause Paragraphs 1 through 29, above,
as though restated herein in full.

31.  Defendants have 'and continue to make, use, offer for sale, sell, and import
products that infringe one or more claims of the ‘338 patent.

32. By their aforesaid acts, Defendant have violated 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by their
infringement of the ‘338 patent.

33.  On information and belief, Defendants’ infringement of the ‘338 patent, both
presently, and in the past, has been willful.

34.  On information and belief, the acts of infringement of Defendants will continue
unless enjoined by this Court.

35.  Plaintiffs are being damaged by Defendants’ infringement of the ‘338 patent and
are being and will continue to be irreparably damaged unless Defendants’ infringerhent is
enjoined by this Court. Plaintiffs, therefore, do not have an adequate remedy at law.

36. - This is an “exceptional case” within the meaning of 35 U.S.C. § 285.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
CONTRIBUTORY/INDUCING PATENT INFRINGEMENT
IN VIOLATION OF 35 U.S.C. §271

37.  Plaintiffs refer to and incorporate in this Cause, Paragraphs 1 through 36, above,
as though restated herein in full.

38.  On information and belief, Defendants have in the past, and continue to presently
supply infringing devices to others for resale.

39. On information and belief, Defendants know that such subsequent resale
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constitutes infringement.

40.  Through such activities, Defendants are inducing infringement of the ‘338 patent.

41.  On information and belief, Defendants’ inducement of infringement of the ‘338
patent, both presently, and in the past, has been willful.

42.  On information and belief, the acts of inducement of infringement of Defendants
will continue unless enjoined by this Court.

43,  Plaintiffs are being damaged by Defendants’ inducement of infringement of the
‘338 patent, and are currently being and will continue to be irreparably damaged unless
Defendants’ actions are enjoined by this Court. Plaintiffs, therefore, do not have an adequate
remedy at law.

44,  This is an “exceptional case” within the meaning of 35 U.S.C. § 285.

RELIEF REQUESTED

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs Allflex and Destron Fearing demand judgment against
Defendants RFID Solutions and West Fork as follows: -

1. That this Court adjudge and declare:

a. That it has jurisdiction of the parties and of the subject matter of this
action;

b. That United States Patent No. 6,400,338 (“the ‘338 patent) is valid;

c. That Defendants RFID Solutions and West Fork have committed acts of
patent infringement by their manufacture, importation, use, offer for sale, and sale of products
which infringe the ‘338 patent;

d. That Defendants RFID Solutions and West Fork have induced
infringement of the ‘338 patent;

2. That Defendants RFID Solutions and West Fork, their respective officers,
directors, owners, agents, representatives, employees, assigns and suppliers, énd all persons

acting in concert or privity with any of them be preliminarily and permanently enjoined from
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making, using, importing, offering for sale or selling any device which infringes, either directly
or indirectly, the ‘338 patent;

3. That Plaintiffs be awarded damages covered by the acts of patent infringement of
Defendants in the amount of Plaintiffs’ lost profits to be determined at trial, but in any event, an
amount not less than a reasonable royalty pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284;

4, That the damage award be trebled due to Defendants’ willful infringement;

5. That Defendants pay Plaintiffs prejudgment interest;

6. That Piaintiffs have and recover their costs in this action, including attorneys’
fees; and

7. That Plaintiffs have such other and further relief as the court may deem just and
proper.

DATED: September 14, 2012
Respectfully submitted,
BALL JANIK LLP

By s/Mark Rosencrantz
Mark Rosencrantz, WSBA No. 26552
mrosencrantz@balljanik.com
Ball Janik LLP
818 Stewart St., Ste. 1110
Seattle, WA 98101
PH: (206) 892-6466
FAX: (206) 624-6039

KAUTH, POMEROY, PECK & BAILEY LLP
Joel A. Kauth, CA Bar No. 186544
joel.kauth@kppb.com

2400 E. Katella Ave., Ste. 1050

Anaheim, CA 92806

PH:  (949) 852-0000

FAX: (949) 852-0004

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure Rule 38(b), Plaintiffs, ALLFLEX USA, INC.
and DESTRON FEARING CORPORATION, demand a trial by jury of all issues in their

Complaint so triable.

DATED: September 14, 2012

Respectfully submitted,
BALL JANIK LLP

By s/Mark Rosencrantz

Mark Rosencrantz, WSBA No. 26552
mrosencrantz(@balljanik.com

Ball Janik LLP

818 Stewart St., Ste. 1110

Seattle, WA 98101

PH.: (206) 892-6466

FAX: (206) 624-6039

KAUTH, POMEROY, PECK & BAILEY LLP
Joel A. Kauth, CA Bar No. 186544
joel.kauth@kppb.com

2400 E. Katella Ave., Ste. 1050

Anaheim, CA 92806

PH:  (949) 852-0000

FAX: (949) 852-0004

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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1

PASSIVE INTEGRATED TRANSPONDER
TAG WITH UNITARY ANTENNA CORE

FIELD OF THE INVENTION

This invention relates to the field of passive integrated
transponder tags, and specifically to a passive integrated
transponder tag having a unitary antenna core.

BACKGROUND OF THE INVENTION

The use of Passive Integrated Transponder (PIT) tags
which may be embedded in or attached to iterns to be tracked
and accouated for has been widespread for some time. These
commonly known PIT tag systems generally comprise one
or more antenna coils so positioned as to generate a field of
radiated electromagnetic energy within which the tagged
item or object must pass. As generally deployed, such
systems are used to track and/or count animals within which
a PIT tag has been subcutaneously embedded or externally
affixed.

As the PIT tag traverses the radiated field of electromag-
netic energy, it is energized in a manner known in the art.
The PIT tag uses this energy—which is typically stored in a
capacitive element—to power a transmission circuit which
emits a unique PIT tag identification signal that is detected
by the aforementioned antenna element. The identification
signal detected by the antenna element is then transmitted to
remote processing equipment which decodes the detected
signal and uses this decoded information for the purposes of
counting, tracking or otherwise maintaining records perti-
nent to the population of items or animals being tracked by
said system.

PIT tags, or transponders, of the type used for object
identification, and particularly those which are implantable
into living creatures, such as livestock, are well known in the
art. Most such PIT tags comprise a coil, which serves as a
receiving antenna, for receiving interrogation signals to
activate the transponder and for receiving power for its
operations. The same antenna is used to transmit the iden-
tification signal. An integrated circuit, housed in an art-
recognized integrated circuit package, is also provided for
performing the circuit functions, including detection of the
interrogation signal, conversion of the received signal to DC
for powering of the transmitter operations, storage and
provision of an identification code, generation of the trans-
mission signal frequency, and modulation of the transmitted
signal in accordance with the code and its transmission. The
circuit divides the interrogation signal frequency by plural
divisors to generate two frequencies which are used to
provide a frequency-shift-keyed output signal, the transmis-
sion frequency varying in accordance with the stored iden-
tification signal. The transponder may be encapsulated in
glass or a similarly durable material, as a matter of design
choice. It may be supplied together with a disposable
cannula for convenient syringe implantation into an animal.
Together with essentially conventional interrogator and data
storage equipment, a complete animal monitoring system
can be provided, suitable for monitoring migratory move-
ments of wild animals as well as laboratory animals, pets
and livestock.

PIT tags of the type used for object identification, and
particularly those which are implantable into living
creatures, such as livestock, are very small and have inherent
size restrictions that must be considered in their design and
manufacture. Over the years, different size PIT tags were
tested and used throughout the industry. Eventually, in the
market for animal identification through implantable PIT
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tags especially, the size became more standardized. Today,
one of the more standard sizes in this field is a PIT tag 12
mm long and 2.07 mm wide. Most of the major studies in
companion animals and fish applications were carried out
with such sized PIT tags. Given such a size standardization,
a need in the art has arisen to increase the operating range
or performance of the PIT tag without increasing its size.

As described in the prior art, PIT tags have generally been
constructed in one of two ways. In the first, the PIT tags are
built in subassemblies, such as one subassembly comprising
the antenna having loose wire leads and another subassem-
bly comprising the Integrated Circuit (IC) and a capacitor
mounted on a Printed Circuit Board (PCB). See, for
example, U.S. Pat. No. 5,211,129, which is assigned to the
same assignee as the present application, and which is
hereby incorporated by reference. The two subassemblies
are then electrically and mechanically connected. This
approach does provide some advantages, including the use
of standard manufacturing machinery as well as the ability
to permit design changes quickly and easily during the
manufacturing process. However, this approach also has
some disadvantages, such as it tends to be labor intensive
because much of the assembly of the subcomponents must
be done manually, for example, connecting the antenna leads
to the IC, and the entire manufacturing process tends to be
costly and timely due in part to the number of manufacturing
steps involved.

In a second approach, the antenna leads are directly
connected to the IC during the manufacturing process. See
for example, U.S. Pat. Nos. 5,223,851 and 5,281,855, each
of which is incorporated herein by reference. One advantage
of such an approach is that the manufacturing process is
more fully automated, thus saving time. However, due in
part to the small size of the components involved, the
machines that directly connect the antenna leads to the IC
tend to be expensive and often need maintenance or super-
vision by a dedicated expert. Further, another disadvantage
of this system is that because the antenna leads are con-
nected directly to the IC, it is difficult and expensive to
substitute alternate types of ICs or capacitors on the final PIT
tag without significant changes in the manufacturing assem-
bly process. Nonetheless, in the prior art the core and IC
support subassemblies are not unitary but rather are multi-
part assemblies made integral by joining the parts together.

It would therefore be advantageous for a PIT tag to be
developed which would alleviate shortcomings of the prior
art. The present invention provides a solution.

SUMMARY OF THE INVENTION

The PIT tag of the present invention generally comprises
a unitary core that extends substantially the entire length of
the PIT tag. As used herein, the term unitary is given its
ordinary meaning and means a one-piece core. In a preferred
embodiment the unitary core generally comprises a cylin-
drical portion for receiving the antenna coil at one end and
a flattened portion for permitting or housing the electrical
connection between the integrated circuit and/or capacitor
and the antenna coil at the other end. In a preferred embodi-
ment the flattened portion of the core is formed with an
integral pair of metalization layers or pads. With the core so
constructed, the leads from the antenna coil can be electri-
cally connected to the metalization layers during the manu-
facturing process. As discussed herein, it is assumed that the
Integrated Circuit (IC) is housed in an art-recognized IC
package, thus, unless otherwise specified, the term IC as
used herein refers not only to the circuitry but to the IC
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package and leads typically present with ICs used in con-
junction with the PIT technology described herein.

By providing metalization layers on the core itself, the
integrated circuit and/or capacitor can be easily electrically
connected to the metalization layers in any of a number of
art-recognized methods. Once connected to the metalization
layers, the integrated circuit is electrically connected to the
antenna coil as well. With the core so constructed, the
unitary core serves as the support for the integrated circuit
and/or capacitor and also permits the electrical connection
between the integrated circuit amd/or capacitor and the
antenna coil to be accomplished in a quicker and less costly
manner than that of the prior art.

As one of skill in the art will recognize, by electrically
connecting the antenna coil to the metalization layer, as
opposed to the integrated circuit, machinery can be more
readily utilized and the manufacturing process can be more
fully automated. Further, by electrically connecting the
integrated circuit to the metalization layer, without having to
attach the integrated circuit directly to the antenna coil leads,
it becomes easier and less expensive to customize the PIT
tags by permitting the substitution of different integrated
" circuits and/or capacitors on the metalization layer, thereby
permitting customized PIT tags to be manufactured more
easily. .

Further, the unitary core of the present invention permits
a larger volume of core material to be used in a standard-
sized PIT tag, or any size of PIT tag for that matter. As one
of skill in the art will recognize, one of the factors affecting
the strength of an electromagnetic field is the size and
material of the core. By increasing the amount of core
material in the PIT tag, without increasing the overall size of
the PIT tag, the PIT tag of the present invention provides for
greater strength of the magnetic filed of the antenna coil,
thereby increasing the operational range of the PIT tag.

Further, as one of skill in the art will recognize, by
utilizing a unitary core design as described herein, the PIT
tag may be able to sustain more shock and vibration than
conventional PIT tags because the flattened portion of the
core physically supports the integrated circuit and/or capaci-
tor.

Further, as one of skill in the art will recognize, by
utilizing a unitary core design as described herein, the
integrated circuit used in the PIT tag can be of the flip-chip
technology with a surface mounting capacitor connected
with conductive glue and cured with beat, or with conven-
tional soldering, or any other art-recognized method.

Other objects and features of the present invention will
become apparent from the following detailed description
considering conjunction with the accompanying drawing
figures. It is to be understood, however, that the drawings,
which are not to scale, are designed solely for the purpose
of illustration and pot as a definition of the limits of the
invention, for which reference should be made to the
appended claims.

DESCRIPTION OF THE DRAWING FIGURE

In the drawing figures, which are not to scale, and which
are merely illustrative, and wherein like reference numerals
depict like elements throughout the several views:

FIG. 1 is a top plan view of a unitary core for use in a PIT
tag in accordance with the present invention;

FIG. 2A is a front elevational view of the unitary core of
FIG. 1;

FIG. 2B is a right side elevational view of the unitary core
of FIG. 2A;
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FIG. 3 is a bottom plain view of the unitary core of FIG.
1

FIG. 4 is a top plan view of an antenna for use with the
unitary core of the present invention;

FIG. 5 is a top plan view of a capacitor for use with the
unitary core of the present invention;

FIG. 6 is a top plan view of an integrated circuit for use
with the unitary core of the present invention;

FIG. 7 is a top plan view of an encapsulating means for
use with the unitary core of the present invention;

FIG. 8 is a top plan view of an assembled PIT tag in
accordance with the present invention;

FIG. 9A is a front elevational view of the PIT tag of FIG.
8;

FIG. 9B is a right side elevational view of the PIT tag of

FIG. 9A;

FIG 10 is a bottom plan view of the PIT tag of FIG. §;

FIG. 11 is a front elevational view of a Printed Circuit
Board (PCB) having a capacitor and integrated circuit
mounted thereon in accordance with the present invention;
and

FIG. 12 is a top plan view of the PCB of FIG. 11.

DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF THE
PREFERRED EMBODIMENTS

With initial reference to FIGS. 1-3, there is depicted a
unitary core, generally depicted as 12, in accordance with
the present invention. As seen in FIGS. 1-3, the unitary core
of the present invention generally comprises a coil-forming
portion 16 at one end of the core, and an integrated circuit
support portion 18 at the other end of the core. The core
forming portion 16 generally comprises a center portion 36
having beveled ends 40 leading to end portions 42. As seen
in FIG. 1, center portion 36 is of generally reduced diameter
than end portions 42 so as to accommodate the coil 20 as
described below. However, other shaped coil forming por-
tions are envisioned, as a matter of design choice, without
departing from the spirit of the invention. Between the
coil-forming portion 16 and the integrated circuit support
portion 18, there is a traosition portion 44. While transition
portion 44 is depicted as a sloped surface, other shaped
portions are envisioned, as a matter of design choice,
without departing from the spirit of the invention. In fact,
transition portion 44 is not essential to the design of unitary
core 12 and therefore unitary core 12 could be constructed
without a transition portion without departing from the spirit
of the invention, although it is preferred that the overall
height of the core and IC be kept at a minimum to keep the
PIT tag small.

In a preferred embodiment, as best seen in FIGS. 2A and
2B, integrated circuit support portion 18 comprises a flat-
tened plane having a lesser height than that of coil forming
portion 16, so as to accommodate the installation of the other
components of the PIT tag without increasing the overall
size of the PIT tag. While integrated support portion 18 is
depicted as a flattened plane, other shapes or configurations
are envisioned without departing from the spirit of the
invention, as a matter of application specific design choice.
That is, other shapes of the integrated support portion 18 are
envisioned so long as the overall height of the PIT tag
remains within an acceptable range for use in an implantable
PIT tags.

In a preferred embodiment, integrated support portion 18
comprises metalization layers 26. Metalization layers 26 are
formed of an art-recognized material having the necessary
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conductive properties to accomplish the objectives of the
present invention and, in a preferred embodiment, the met-
alization layers 26 are formed of silver. Other precious
metals, such as gold, are also envisioned and believed to be
usable as a matter of application specific design choice. As
one of skill in the art will recognize, and as described more
fully below, the metalization layers 26 serve as the electrical
connection between the antenna 20, integrated circuit 14 and
capacitor 28. In a preferred embodiment, metalization layers
26 are deposited on integrated circuit support portion 18 in
an art recognized deposition technique. However, metaliza-
tion layers 26 could be otherwise mounted on or formed on,
or in, or as a part of, integrated circuit support portion 18 as
a matter of design choice without departing from the spirit
of the invention. Further, while metalization layers 26 are
depicted as extending only a portion of the length of
integrated circuit support portion 18, the actual length or
shape of the layers is not an essential aspect of the present
invention. For example, the metalization layers 26 could be
formed as a plate or any other shape and size, as a matter of
design choice, without departing from the spirit of the
invention.

In a preferred embodiment, the unitary core 12 is formed
of a ferrite, and, in particular, high temperature ferrite. High
temperature ferrite may or may not be necessary, as a matter
of design choice, depending on how metalization layers 26
are deposited on, or formed on or in integrated circuit
support portion 18. Further, while ferrite is envisioned as a
preferred core material of the present invention, other are-
recognized core materials now konown or available in the
future are envisioned without departing from the spirit of the
invention.

Many of the other main components of a conventional
Passive Integrated Transponder (PIT) tag are depicted in
FIGS. 4-7. As used herein the terms Passive Integrated
Transponder tags and/or PIT tags are used synonymously
and are intended to mean any type of passive transponder
which emits a signal in response to exposure to a radiated
electromagnetic, electrical or magnetic energy field. Such
tags are commonly subcutaneously embedded in animals for
the purpose of tracking and identifying them in such loca-
tions as zoos and farms, or in the wild. Such tags are also
used for tagging fish and birds, as well as domestic pets. As
is known in the art, and as will become evident from a
further reading of the material below, systems such as the
one described herein, may be deployed in numerous appli-
cations and situations limited only by the imagination of the
person of skill in the art. The unitary core of the present
invention may therefor be used in any application wherein
transponders are placed on objects for tracking such objects
as they pass within or through the field of a bi-directional
antenna which energizes the transponder and receives iden-
tifying signals therefrom. As used herein, the terms object
and item are used interchangeably and mean any PIT tagged
entity, animate or inanimate.

FIG. 4 depicts a conventional antenna, generally indicated
as 20, comprising a coil portion 22 and lead portions 24.
Antennae for use in PIT tags are well known in the art. The
particular wire used, or the number of turns in coil portion
22, is not an essential feature of the present invention. That
is, the present invention envisions the use of any art recog-
nized antenna wire, having the necessary number of turns, to
accomplish the desired application specific features of the
particular PIT tag required. FIG. 5 depicts a capacitor,
which, as described later, may or may not form a part of the
invention depending in part on the specific integrated circuit
utilized in the PIT tag. FIG. 6 depicts an integrated circuit
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14. Integrated circuits are well known in the art and, like
capacitor 28, the particular integrated circuit 14 used in the
present invention can be selected as a matter of design
choice, depending on the particular characteristics or fea-
tures desired in the PIT tag. In a preferred embodiment,
integrated circuit 14 is an ISO 11'784/11'785 Compliant
Read-Only Contactless Identification Device sold by E.M.
Micro Electronic—Marrin S.A. under the item number H
4005. The particular characteristics and features of the
preferred integrated circuit 14 are described in E.M. Micro
Electronic—Marrin S.A.’s Integrated Circuit’s product cata~
log under the item number H 4005, which is hereby incor-
porated by reference. As explained in greater detail in the
product catalogue, the preferred integrated circuit 14 com-
prises an on-chip resonance capacitor and on-chip supply
buffer capacitor, which therefore may eliminate the need for
capacitor 28 as depicted in the Figures herein. Furthermore,
as explained in greater detail in the product catalogue, the
preferred integrated circuit 14 comprises bumps for permit-
ting an electrical connection between the integrated circuit
and the metalization layers 26 of the present invention.

FIG. 7 depicts an encapsulation means 34. In a preferred
embodiment, encapsulation means 34 is formed of glass.
However, as a matter of design choice, any other art recog-
nized non-porous, corrosion-resistant material that is ame-
nable to sterilization could be used as the encapsulation
means 34 without departing from the spirit of the invention.
Glass encapsulation of transponders is within the skill of the
art, as described for example in U.S. Pat. No. 3,935,612 to
Fisher et al., which is hereby incorporated by reference.

FIGS. 8-10 depict an encapsulated PIT tag having a
unitary core constructed in accordance with a preferred
embodiment of the present invention. As secen in FIGS.
8-10, coil portion 22 of coil 20 is wound about coil-forming
portion 16 of the unitary core 12, with the lead portions 24
extending from the coil portion in a direction towards the
integrated circuit support portion 18 of unitary core 12. The
lead portions 24 terminate and are electrically connected to
the metalization layers 26 in an art-recognized manner.
Further, the capacitor 28, if required, as well as the inte-
grated circuit 14 are mounted and/or electrically connected
to the metalization layers 26. While capacitor 28 is depicted
in the Figures, as described above, the need for a capacitor
may be eliminated, as a matter of design choice, depending
on the particular integrated circuit chosen. In a preferred
embodiment, as described above, the bumps on the preferred
integrated circuit provide for the electrical conmection
between the integrated circuit 14 and metalization layers 26.
Other art-recognized methods or means for electrically
connecting the integrated circuit and/or the capacitor to the
metalization layers are envisioned without departing from
the spirit of the invention.

As best seen in FIGS. 9A and 9B, the integrated circuit
support portion 18 of unitary core 12 extends beneath and
supports the capacitor 28 and integrated circuit 14. Further,
because the integrated circuit support portion 18 is formed
with a reduced height (as compared with the coil forming
portion 16) the overall height of the PIT tag need not be
increased when the integrated circuit 14 and/or capacitor 28
are mounted on the integrated circuit support portion 18 of
unitary core 12. Also, as seen in FIGS. 8-10, in a preferred
embodiment unitary core 12 extends substantially the entire
length of the interior of encapsulation means 34.

In an alternate embodiment (not shown), unitary core 12
is constructed in a similar manner as described above, but
metalization layers 26 are not used. Instead, in the alternate
embodiment, a Printed Circuit Board (PCB) 30 is used to
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electrically connect the antenna leads 24, capacitor 28 and
integrated circuit 14. As seen in FIGS. 11 and 12, the PCB
comprises electrical pads 32 to electrically connect the
antenna leads 24 of the antenna coil 20 to both the capacitor
28 an integrated circuit 14, in a manner well known in the
art. While the use of pads 32 are depicted, other art-
recognized methods or means of electrically connecting
antenna leads 24 to PCB 30 are envisioned without depart-
ing from the spirit of the invention. In this alternate
embodiment, the PCB 30 is mounted on integrated circuit
support portion 18 of unitary core 12. Thus, as with the
previous embodiment disclosed, the integrated circuit sup-
port portion 18 of the unitary core 12 would extend beneath
and support both the capacitor 28 and integrated circuit 14.

As one of skill in the art will recognize, the unitary core
12 of the present invention offers many advantages over
pror art PIT tag cores. For example, by terminating the
antenna lead 24 to the metalization layers 26, the manufac-
turing process could be more fully automated. Further, by
electrically connecting the integrated circuit 14 to the met-
alization layers 26, without having to attach the integrated
circuit 14 directly to the antenna leads 24, it becomes easier
and less expensive to customize the PIT tags by permitting
the substitution of different integrated circuits and/or capaci-
tors on the metalization layer, thereby permitting customized
PIT tags to be manufactured more easily.

Further, as one of skill in the art will recognize, the unitary
core of the present invention permits a larger volume of core
material to be used in a standard sized PIT tag. As one of
skill in the art will recognize, one of the factors effecting the
strength of an electromagnetic field is the size and material
of the core. By increasing the amount of core material in the
PIT tag, without increasing the overall size of the PIT tag,
the PIT tag of the present invention provides for a greater
capture of the magnetic field of the antenna coil, thereby
increasing the operational range of the PIT tag. In fact, the
applicant determined that the structure of the PIT tag core of
the present invention can provide for up to a 50% increase
in the operational range of the PIT tag as compared with
prior art PIT tags.

Further, as one of skill in the art will recognize, by
utilizing the unitary core design as described herein, the PIT

tag may be able to sustain more shock and vibration than -

conventional PIT tags because the integrated circuit support
portion 18 physically supports the integrated circuit 14
and/or capacitor 28.

Thus, while there have been shown and described and
pointed out fundamental novel features of the invention as
applied to preferred embodiments thereof, it will be under-
stood that various omissions and substitutions and changes
in the form and details of the disclosed invention may be
made by those skilled in the art without departing from the
spirit of the invention. It is the intention, therefore, to be
limited only as indicated by the scope of the claims
appended hereto.

What is claimed is:

1. A passive integrated transponder (PIT) tag comprising:

an integrated circuit and a unitary core;

said unitary core comprising a coil-forming portion proxi-

mate one end thereof and an integrated circuit support
portion proximate an opposite end thereof; and
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wherein said integrated circuit support portion extends

beneath and supports said integrated circuit.

2. The PIT tag of claim 1, wherein said integrated circuit
support portion has a metalization layer formed thereon.

3. The PIT tag of claim 1, wherein said unitary core is
formed of a ferrite.

4. The PIT tag of claim 1, further comprising a Printed
Circuit Board (PCB) mounted on said integrated circuit
support portion.

5. The PIT tag of claim 1, wherein a length of said unitary
core substantially defines a length of said PIT tag.

6. The PIT tag of claim 1, further comprising an encap-
sulation means for encapsulating said PIT tag to form a
sealed unit.

7. The PIT tag of claim 2, further comprising:

an antenna comprising a coil portion wound about said

coil-forming portion and lead portions extending from -
said coil portion and terminating at said integrated
circuit support portion.

8. The PIT tag of claim 7, wherein said antenna lead
portions terminate at and are electrically connected to said
metalization layer.

9. The PIT tag of claim 2, wherein said integrated circuit
is electrically connected to said metalization layer.

10. The PIT tag of claim 2, further comprising a capacitor
mounted on and electrically connected to said metalization
layer.

11. The PIT tag of claim 2, wherein said metalization
layer is formed of gold or silver.

12. The PIT tag of claim 4, wherein said antenna leads and
said integrated circuit are electrically connected to said PCB.

13. The PIT tag of claim 7, wherein said antenna coil is
indirectly electrically connected to said integrated circuit.

14, The PIT tag of claim 13, wherein said unitary core has
a length that extends substantially coextensively with a
length of said sealed unit.

15. The PIT tag of claim 3, wherein said ferrite is a high
temperature ferrite.

16. A unitary core for receiving an antenna coil, compris-
ing:

a coil receiving portion adapted to receive an antenna coil

thereon; and

an integrated circuit support portion adapted to receive an

integrated circuit thereon.

17. The unitary core of claim 16, wherein said integrated
circuit support portion further comprises a metalization layer
formed thereon.

18. The unitary core of claim 17, wherein said metaliza-
tion layer is adapted to receive said integrated circuit.

19. The unitary core of claim 18, wherein metalization
layer electrically connects said antenna coil and said inte-
grated circuit.

20. The unitary core of claim 17, wherein said metaliza-
tion layer is formed of gold or silver.

21. The unitary core of claim 16, wherein said integrated
circuit support portion is adapted to receive a PCB.

22. The unitary core of claim 16, wherein said core is
formed of a ferrite.

23, The unitary core of claim 22, wherein said ferrite is a
high temperature ferrite.
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